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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
City of Crossville. Tennessee ‘

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-type
activitics, cach major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison for the
ceneral tund and the capital projects fund of (he City of Crossville, Tenuessee as ofand for (he year ended June
30, 2009, which callectively comprise the City's basic financial stfentents as lisied in the 14ble of contents,
These financial statements are (he responsibility of (he City of Crossville, Tennessee’s management. Qur

responsibility is to express vpinions on these financial statements based on eur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing staudards generally aceepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those stundards require that we plan and perform the audit to
abtain reasonable assurance about whether the fiancial staiements are (ree of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the linancial
stalements. An audit also incluedes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our vpinion, the financial statements referred (0 above present fairly, in all material respects, the respeclive
financial position of the governmenal aclivitics, the business-type activities, cach major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of (he City of Crossville, Tennessee as of June 30, 2009, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof” and the budgetary
conparison for the seneral fund and the capital projects fund for the year then ended in confornvity with
accounting principles generally aceepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1., the City of Crosaville, Tennessce implemented (he provisions of Governmenial
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 13, Accownting and Finaeial Reporting by Employers
Jor Postemplovment BSencfits Other Than Penisions, which changed its method of accounting lur
postemployment benefits other than pensions eltective for the yvear ended June 30, 2009.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued oor report dated November 23, 2009.
on our consideration of the City of Crossville, Tennessee's intanal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its complhiance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracis, and prant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is fo describe (he scope of our (esting of infernal contral over financial
reporting and compliance and (he results of that festing. and not (o provide an opinion on the miternal contro)
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
Crossville, Tenncssce
Page Two

Themanagement’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10 is not a required part of ihe basic financial
statements but is supplemenlary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Americe. We have applicd certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquines of management regarding the methods ol measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the informalion and express no opinion on it.

Qur audit was conducted or the pumpose of forming opinions on the NHinancial statements (hat collechvely
comprise the City of Crossvilie, Tennessee's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and other supplementary information are
presented for purposcs of additional analysis and are not a requnred part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Officc of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial stutements of the City of Croxsville, Tennessce. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial stitements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state linaneal
assistance have been subjected (o the auditing procedures appited m the audit of the basic financial slatements
and, m ouropinion, are lfairly stated in al) nuacrial respects in relation to the basic financial stalements taken
as awhale. The inraductony section and the other supplementary mformation section have nol been subjected
to the auditing procedures applicd in the audit of 1he basic financial stalements and, accordingly, we express

no opinjon on them.

November 23, 2009
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Crossville, Tennessee's (“City ™) financial performance provides an
overview of the Crty's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Please read it in conjunclion
with the City's Iimancial sudements, which begin on page 11,

FINANCIAL HIGHILIGHTS

The City's governmental activity 11al assets decreased by $2,619,000 in 2009 or 5.3%, while business-type
activily total assets decreased by $472,000 or 0.8%6, resulting in a decrease in total primary government assets
of $3,091,000 or about 2.9%. Governmental activity total revenues for the City increased $834,000 or 6.3%,
while business-type total revenues increased by $310,000 or 3.8%, resulting in an increase in total prumary
government revenues oi'S1,164,000, or 5.1%. The City’s governmental activily total program costs for 2009
increased $931.000 or 8.2%, while business-activity total program costs decreased by $130,000 or 1.8%,
resulting in an increase in total primary government program costs of $801,000 or 4.3%. With respect to the
City's governmental activitics, while total revenues increased, net assets increased by $1,295,000. On a
budgetary basis of accounting for the General Fund, there was anct excess of expenditures over revenues and
other income sources and other uses of $4,392,000. The City’s General Fund balance at fiscal year-end was
approximately $10.405,000.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series ol financial stalements. The statement of net assets and the statement of
activitics provide information about 1he activitics af the City as a whole and present a longer-term view ol the
City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 13. For governmental activities, these statements tell
how these services were financed in the short term as wull as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
stalements also report the City’s operations in mare detail than the government-wide statements by providing
mformation about the City's most significant funds.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE

For an analysis of the City's financial operation as a whole, we must examine the statement of net assets and
the statement of activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which 1s similar to the accounting method used by most companies in the private sector. All of
the current year's revenoes and expenses are taken info account regardless of when cash is received or paudl. 1in
reviewing these financial statements, we must ask, “Is (he City of Crossville as w whole financially beteer or
worse os 4 result of this year's activities?”

One way to answer this question of the City's financial position and stability is 1o review the City's stalements
of net assets (the difference between assets and labilities) and the changes in these net assets over time.
Tables 1 and 2 of this discussion and analysis offer this information in a comparative format which provides
an excellent opportunity o evaluate the City's financial health, In reviewing these statements you will also
need to consider other non-fnancial faclors, such as, changes in the City's property and sales tax base and the
condition of the City's infrastructure facilitics and equipment.

As illustrated in Table |, total assets of the City's governmental activities were $49,104.000 in 2009 versus
$31,723,000 in 2008, representing a decrease of $2,619,000 or 5.3%. Table | also shows that total assets of
the City’s business-type activities were $55,985,000 in 2009 versus $56,457,000 in 2008, representing a
decrease of $472,000 or 0.8%.
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REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLLE, continucd
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Table 1
Net Assels
(in Thousands)
Tatal
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Aclivitics Activilics Government
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change
Current and other assets FTI4R818  $20.590 § (5.772) S S.635 $ K771 $ (3.136) $§ 204353 0§ 29361 S (8.008)
Capital assets 34,286 31,133 3153 S(,350 47.686 2,664 84,636 78.819 5817
Total assets T49T04 § 51,727 § (2.619) §55985 S 56457 & (472) T 105080 S 108,180 & (3.091)
Long-term liabilitics $ 1125 § 4635 § (35100 S16,592 S I8161  § (1.569) § 17717 § 227796 % (5.079)
Other hahilitics 2643 3.047 (A0 288 641 (356) 2928 3688 (760)
Total liabiliues 3.768 7.682 (2.914) 16,877 [R.8N2 (1.925) 20,645 26,484 {5,830y
Nel assets:
Invested i capital assers,
net of related debit 3347) 205,489 6,982 33.697 29,757 3.940 67,168 36.246 10922
Reslricted 805 1439 (634d) 1,537 1.467 70 2342 2.006 {564)
Unrestricted 11,064 16,113 (5.053) 3.874 6,431 (2:557) 14,934 22,544 {7.610)
Fotal ned assets 45,336 44,041 1,203 39,108 37,6535 1,453 REREE] 81.696 2.748
Lotal liabilitics
and nel assels SA9.T04 S 51,723 0% (2.619) §$355985 % 56437 % (472) $ 105089 S 108,180 S (3.091)

The sigmificant elements and canses for the changes in the City's govemmental activities (ofal assets in 2049
were: (1) Current and other asse(s decreased by $5,772,000 which was attributed in part to a debt payoft of
$4.500,000 for the soccer complex. (2) Capilal assets, net increased by $3,153.000 which was made up of the
Ioliday I'ills road and bridge, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure additions.

The signiticant aspect of the decrease in the City's business-(ype activities total assets in 2009 was a decrease
in current and other assets of $3,136.000 which was altribuled in part {o capital acquisitions and debt payo(f
and an incredse in capital assets of $2,664.000.

As shown in Table 1, (otal liabilitics of the City's governmental activitics decreased by $3,914,000 or 51.0% to
$3.768.000 in 2009 irom $7.682.000 in 2008 Table | also shows total liabilities of the City’s business-lype
activities decreased by $1.925,000 or 10.2% io $16,877,000 in 2009 from $18,802.000 in 2008. The
sipgnificant elements and causes for the changes in the City's (otal liabilities in 2009 were: (J) decrease of
accounts payable and relainage payable by $331,000 in the governmental activities and $356,000 in the
business activifies and (2) long-term liabilitics decreased by $3.510,000 1n the governmental activities and
$1.569.000 in the business activities mainly due to debl payments.

Therclore, (otal net assets of the City's governmental activities increased 10 $:45.336,000 in 2009 (rom
$44.041,000 in 2008 representing an increase of $1,295.000 or 2.9%, and total net assels of the Ciry’s
business-type activities increased to $39,108,000 from $37.655,000, representing an increase of $1.4353.000 or
3.9%

The City’s covernmental activities nef asseis increased $1,295,000 due (0 (1) net assets invested in capital
assets, net ol refated debt, increased by $6,982.000. (2) restricted net assets decreased by $634.000 and (3)
unrestricted net assets deereased by $5,053,000. I'he City’s business-type activilies net assels increased
$1.453.000 due to (1) nel assets invested in capital assets, net of relaled debt, increased by $3.940,000. (2)
restricled net asscls increased by $70.000 and (3) unresiricted net assels decrcased by $2.557.000.



REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE, continucd

Table 2 illustrates the changes in net assets. As stated earlier, the changes in net assets aver time provide an
exccellent opportunity to ¢valuate the financial health of the City of Crossville. Total revenues for the City’s
govemmental activitics increased 10 $14,348,000 1n 2009 from $13.494.000 in 2008, representing a increase of’
$854,000 or 6.3%. Toial revenues for the City s business-type activitics increased 10 $8,487.000 in 2009 from
$8.177.000 in 2008. representing an increase of $310,000 or approximately 3.8%.

Table 2
Changes in Ncl Assels
(in Thaonsands)

j\@

Governmeatal Business-Type Total Priinary
Activities Aclivities Government
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change
Revennes
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 729 S RS (32) S 6010 § 7405 5 (495) & 7.639 S 8IRK6 § 347
Granls and contributions:
F'or operations 364 408 (44) - - - 164 108 (443
For capital projects 2,225 - 2,225 1485 437 1,048 3710 137 3213
Cicneral revenues:
Praperty 1laxes 1.899 1.827 72 - - - 1,899 1.827 72
Intergovernmental revenues 8,671 9410 (769) - - - R.671 9.440 (76Y)
Interest camings 229 6l4 (385) 95 30K (213) 324 922 (598)
Other revenue 222 406 (184) 2 27 (23) 224 133 (209}
Giain (loss) on disposal of assels Y I8 (V) (3) - (5) 4 18 (14)
Fatal revennes 14,348 13,494 K54 8187 8.177 310 22 833 21.671 1,164
Program expenses:
Gieneral government 2.730 2415 295 - - 2,730 2438 2935
City court 16 14 2 - - 16 I 2
Alirport 220 175 45 - - - 220 175 As
Industrial development - [ (1%) - - - - 18 {1&)
Cemetery S 48 3 - - - by A48 3
Parks and reereation 1,257 1117 140 - - - 1,257 117 14q
Planning and zoning 188 159 () - - - 188 189 n
Public safcty 5104 4. 889 215 - - - S 104 4.889 215
Sanitation 361 393 32) - - - b RRR (32)
Streels 2,165 [,RY9 2606 - - - 2,163 1.899 266
F'ourism development 34 47 (13) - RE! 47 (13
Interest on long-termi debt 112 83 29 - - 12 83 29
Water and sewer department - - - 7.034 7164 (130) EKIRY! 7164 (130)
Totul expenses 12,238 11,307 931 7.034 7.164 (130) 19.272 18171 301
Contributinns to non-profits (8135) (296) (519) - - - (815) (290) (519)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1.205 1.891 (396) tAS3 1.013 440 2,748 2.904 (136)
NET ASSETS, Beginning 44,04 | 42,150 1,891 17.655 36.642 1.013 81,696 78,742 2904
NET ASSETS, Eading S 43,336 $ 44041 S1.295 F 3100108 $37635 1433 § 84444 F 81696 T 2748

The increase in total revenues of the City's governmental activities for 2009 as compared (o 2008 totaled
$854,000 or 6.3%. Revenues excluding grants and contributions were down in the current year $351,000 due
(o the ecconomy. however, revenues increased due 10 federal and state grants and coniributions increasced in
2009 by $2.181.000 compired 1o 2008, which covered the losses of all the other income,

The increase in towl revenues of (he City's business-type activities Jor 2009 as compared 10 2008 (otaled
$310,000 or 3.8%. Walter and sewer revenues excluding grants and contributions were down in the current year
$738.000 due to the economy. however, revenues increased due to federisl and state grants and contributions
increased m 2009 by §1.048,000 compared (o 2008, which covered ihe Josses of all the water and sewer
income.



REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE, continued

Table 2 shows that total program expenses for the City's governmental activities increused 10 $12,238,000 in
2009 from S11,307,000 in 2008, representing an increase of $931,000 or 8.2%. Total program expenses for
the City’s business-type activities decreased to $7,034,000 in 2009 from £7,164,000 in 2008, representing a
decrease of $130,000 or 1.8%.

The increase in tolal program expenses of $93),000 or 8.2% for the City’s governmental activities was
primarily duc to: (1) General government expenses increased by $295,000, (2) street expenses also increased
by S266,000, (3) public safetly expenses increased by $215,000, (4) parks and recreation expenses increased
by $J40,000 and (5) all other departmen(s’ expenses and interest expense on long-term debt increased by
315,000.

The decrease in total program expenses of $130,000 or 1.8% for the Cily’s business-lype activities was
primarily due to a decrease in repairs and maintenance cxpense.

Governmental Activities

The City's fiscal operating year is the lwelve-month period beginning cach July 1. An annual operating
budaet is submiued o0 Mayor and City Council members prior to the commencement of the related fiscul year,
and a budget ordinance for the year is subsequenty adopted. Any revisions or amgndments requite Mayor and
City Council action. All annual appropriations not expended lapsc at fiscal year-end. The budgetary
appropriations constitute maximum expenditure authorizations during the (iscal year, and cannot legally be
exceeded unless subsequently amended by the Mayor and City Council,

CAPITAL ASSETS

Tahle 3 provides a comparative view of the capital assets of the City’s governmental and business-type
activities in six wajor categories: land and construction in progress; buildings and improvements; machinery
and cquipment, infrastructure, utility plant in service and accumulated depreciation.

Table 3
Capifal Assets at Year-End
(in Thousands)

Goyernmenial Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change

Land and construction in progress § 7,106 § 7042 & 64 § 3612 S 1973 $1.640 S 10,719 § 9015 § 1,704
Buddings and improvements 16,292 13,914 2,373 - . - 16,292 13919 2373
Machinery and equipment 6,241 5,644 397 3436 1406 30 9,677 9,050 627
[nfrastructure 17,219 15,908 13N - - - 17,219 15,908 1,311
Utility plant in service - . - 71,9582 69,008 2974 71,982 69,008 2,974
Total capital assels 46,858 42,513 42345 79,031 74,387 4,644 125,889 116,900 8,989
Accumulated depreciation (12,572) (11,380)  (1,192)  (28,681)  (26,901) (1,780)  (41,253)  (38,281) (2,972}
Net capital assets T34786 § J13Y T 3I5Y T 30350 C 47486 S 2864 § 84,636 S /861U § 6017

Governnmental Activitics

I June 2008, the City’s governmental activities had $31,133,000 (net of accumulated depreciation) invested
in a broad range of capital assets, including police and fire equipment, municipal buildings, park facilities,
roads. and various other czpital assets. In June 2009 capital assets were $34,286,000 (net of accumulated
depreciation), representing an increase of $3,153,000 or 10.1%. The net increase in capilal assels was
primarily due to the Holiday Hills dam project and equipment additions.



Business-lype Activities

In June 2008. the City's business-type aclivities, consisting of the Water and Sewer Department, had
$47,486.000 (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in land, machinery and equipment, and utility plant in
service which is by far the most significant component of the Water and Sewer Departiment s capital assets. In

June 2009 capital assets were $50,350,000 (net of accumulated depreciation), representing an increase ol

$2,864,000 or 6.0% over 2008. The net increase in capital assets was primarily duc to the Holiday Hills dam
project for the water and sewer lines and addifional projects during the ycar.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Table 1 illustrates the significant components of the City's budget for the general fund for the year ended Junc
30, 2009. The eriginal budget revenue estimates total $15,178,000. Final budgct revenues for the period
amountced 10 $15,291.000. Final actual revenucs for the period amounted o $13,119,000. T'he City's original
budgct estimated expenditures for the 2000 year-end were $14,710,000. Final budect expenditeres for the
period amounted to $19.395,000. [Final actual expenditures for the period amounted 1e $ 15,835,000, Therefore,
the City rcalized an actual budget deficit of revenues over expenditures ot $2,716.000, which was $1.388.000
better than the final budgct. This deficit was incieased by other financing uses and contributions (o non-prolit
organizations which were undey budget by $1,630,000. Atthe end of this period the City's actudl genceral fund -
lund balance was $10,432,000.
Table 4
General Fund Budget Comparison

(in Thousand\)

Variance with

Original Final Final Budeet -
Budget Budget Actual Over/(Undcr)
Revenues
[anes 1780 S L7800 1948 $ 168
{ntergovernmental revenues 9410 9416 K711 (705)
Federal and state grams 2,442 2356 1.338 (1.218)
Other revenues 1.540 1.539 1.122 (417}
otal revenues 15,178 (5.29] 13,119 (2.172)
Expenditures
General povernmem 2.796 2.766 2517 (249)
Parks and recreation 1,223 1.257 1.021 (236)
Public safety S04 §.225 4,712 (513)
Strects 2,109 1.667 1,409 (258)
Capital outlay 2,236 2913 1,106 (1.807)
Other expenditures 1,118 5,567 5,070 (497)
I'ntal expenditures 14.710 19.393 15,815 (3.560)
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 468 (4.104) (2.716) 1.388
Other finaneng sources (uses) (2.872) (2,943) (1.334) 1.609
Contributions to non-profit organizalions 492 856 815 (41)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (2.896) (7.903) (4.865) 3.038
Fund Balance; Beginning 15,297 15,297 15,297 -
Fund Baltunce, Ending S 12400 § 7394 § 10432 % 3.038

Business-tvpe Activitics

The Wastewater Department adopts an Operating Budget (o assist in planning and forecasting for (he fiscal
year. The Budget is approved and is in effect for the entire fiscal year. Management uses Ihe bhudvet as a
planning tool for the coming vear.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Governmental Activities

AL the cnd of the current fiscal year the City's sovernmental activities had outstanding long-term debt of
$1.125.000 including accrued compensated abscnces and other post employment benefits. The prior year total
of long-term liabilities amounted to $4,635,000; conscquently long-lerm liabilities decreased during (he year by
$3,310,000 or 75.7%. This decrease was primarily duc 1o the payo(f of long-teem debt for the soccer complex
offset by increases in accrued compensated absences and other post employment benefit obligations.

Business-tvpe Activities

At the end of 1he current fisca) year the Cily's business-type activities, comprised of the Waler and Sewer
Department, had outstanding long-term debt of"$16,592.000 inclugding accrued compensated absences and
other post employment benefits. The prior year fotal of lonp term Jiabilities amounted (o $18.161.000;
consequently long term labilities decreased during (he year by $1,569,000 or 8.6%. This decreasc was
primarily due to principal long-term debt payments.

The Water and Sewer Department has outstanding debr of $16,493,000 payable (o the Stife of I'ennessee for
"I MBI loans, State Revolving Funds, RUD Funds and Retunding Bonds. As reflected i the stutement ol net
assets for the proprietary fund, current Labilities at year end were $305.656. In addition to this amount the
current portion of long ferm debt is $964,044.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The Annual Budget assures the efficient, effective and cconomic uses of the City's resources, as well as,
eslablishing that the highest priority objectives are accomplished. Through the budget. (he Board of Mayor and
Council members sets the direction of (he City, allocates its resources and cstablishes its priorities.

In terms of the fisture, while we are in good financial shape at this time, with revenue streams limited and the
larpe amount of growth the City is facing, we need (o be alert to the public benefit versus the costs af the
services we provide. [n sher, as the budge( better reflects actual revenues and as we move into the futnre, we
need o be careful of our spending so that we do not find ours¢lves in the position of expenditures outpacing
revenues.

The City is continuing to grow at a steady pace. To (hat end, it is important that the Board update its
comprehensive plan and goals and maintains its communication efforls through the budgeting process. The
housing devclopment trend is decreasing, although new business development has continued 1o grow. This
allows (he City s sales 1ax revenue (0 continue to be steady. The City continues to face many challenges in
maintaining a necessary level of infrasteucture, As it relates 10 the City’s Water and Sewer Department, an
imponrant goal is 10 incorporate the City’s Masler Plan priorities into the Five-Year Capital Improvement
Budget as well as increase the level of service and customer satisfaction. The rate of infrastructure failures on
aoed equipment will determine many of'the City's priorities for the upcoming years.

The significant changes in the cconomy deereased the revenues for the City this year, ‘The federat and state
grants that were received by the City kept the revenues of the City from falling lower than expected. This
decrease has not affected the City's overall services 1o the community. The increased sales tix base will have a
sienificant ipact on the City's revenues in the upcoming years. T'he City has been able to maintain services
without a 1ax increase for the past few years, which will continue 1o be a major challenge with continued
arowih.

9
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CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed (0 provide our citizens, taxpayers, custoniers, investors and creditors with a
general averview of the City's (inancec and 1o show the City's accounlability for the money it receives. If you
have any questions about this report or need any additionzl financial information, please contact the Director of
Finance at the City of Crossville. 99 Municipal Avenue, Crossville, Tennessee 38555, (931) 456-3991 or

fchoustonf@erossvilletn.oov.



CITY OF CROSSVII.LF, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2009

W

ot

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents

Net receivables

Unbilled revenucs

Note reccivable

Muterials and supplies

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Other asacts

Unamortized debt issuance costs

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retamaee payable
Accerued payroll and payroll taxes
Other acerued lianhities
Deferred revenues
Noncurrent liabilities
Duc within onc ycar
Due in maore than onc year

NET ASSETS
Invesied in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital prajects and strect maintenance
Debt service
Drug enforcement
Industrial developnient
Low meome housing assistance
Unrestricted

Tulal netissets

Governmental Business-Type

Activitics Activities Total
9,139,712 2,051,062 $ 11,190,774
3,973,304 1,173,580 5,146,884
- 294 820 264 820
§15.000 - 815,000
136,814 399 845 316.659
753,402 1,357,625 2,111.027
7,106,382 1613305 10,719,687
27,179475 46,737,102 73916,577
179.030 179,030
- 178,175 178,175
49,104,089 55,984,544 § 105,088,633
486,867 230,615 % 717,482
41,303 - 41.303
116.45) 27,155 143,606
56.741 27.010 83,751
[.942,121 - 1,942,124
109,389 984,920 1.004,309
1.015,241 15,606,944 16,622,185
3.768.113 16,876,644 20.644.757
33.470,857 33.697,041 67.167.898
107.502 1.357,625 1.465.127
- 179.030 179.030
122,132 122,132
550979 - 350,979
24,681 - 21,681
11,059,825 3.874.204 14,934,029
45,335,976 39,107,900 84,443,876
49,104,089 55,984,544  $ 105,088,633

Sce notes to Mnancial statements.



CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense) /
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenue
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General governiment $ 2730,255 S 239,861 10,047 § - $ (2,480.347)
Cily court 16.153 185,659 - - 169,506
Airporl 219331 75.035 22.403 62.660 (59.433)
Cemetery SI1,133 38.875 - - (12,260)
Parks and recreation 1,256,746 158,508 - (1.098,178)
Planning: and zoning 187,490 - - - (187.490)
Public safety 5.104 375 30,680 56935 - (5,016.740)
Sanitation 360,958 - - - (360.958)
Streets 2,165.183 - 275,058 2,162,136 272,008
Tourism development 34,195 - - - (34.195)
Interest on lonz-term debt 111,508 = - - (111,508)
12,237,529 28,678 364,460 2,224,796 (8.919,593)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Waler and sewer department 7.034,139 6,909,590 - 1,485,268 1,360,419
TOTAL GOVERNMENT $10271,968 § 7.638.268 §$ 364,460 S 3710064 S (7,559,176)
Governmental  Business-1ype
Activitics Activities Tolal
NET (EXPENSE)/ REVENUR $ (B.OI19.595) § 1,360419 § (7.559.176)
CENERAL REVENUFES
Property (axes 1,899,266 - 1.899.266
Intereovernmental revenues 8.670,830 . 8,670.830
Interest earnings 228.838 95,092 32:.930
Other revenue 222,047 2,131 224,178
Gain (10ss) on disposition of capilal asscts 8.525 (5.041) 3.484
Total general revenuces 11,029,506 92.182 11,121,688
CONTRIBUTIONS TO NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS (815,203) - (815,203)
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND CONTRIBUTIONS 10.214,303 92.182 10.306,485
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,294,708 1,452,601 2,747,309
NET ASSETS JUNE 30, 2008 44,041,268 37.655.299 81,696,567

NET ASSETS JUNF 30, 2009

$ 45335976

$ 39.107.900

R

84,443,876

See notes (o financial statements,
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEFE

ASSFETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Net recesvables
Miterials and supplics
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Capital projects and street maintenance
Drug enlorcement
Industrial development
l.ow income housing assisiance
Unreserved:
General fund
Capital projects
Solid waste
Total fund balances

JUNE 30, 2009

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

e

Capital Nonnmajor Total
General Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 9,139712 § - 3 - % 9139712
3,875.782 - 97,522 3.973.304
129,294 - 7,520 136814
24,681 42,756 685,965 753,402

$ 13,169469 § 42,756  § 791,007 § 14,003,232
) 467,982 % 14.558 § 1327 & 486.867
- 41,303 - 41,303

116,451 - - 116,451
S04 - - 56,741
2,096,462 - - 2,096,462
2,737,636 55,861 1,327 2,797,824

- 1,453 106.049 107.502

- - 122,132 122,132

- 550979 550,979

24,681 - 24.681
10,407,152 - - 10,407.152
- (14,558) - (14.558)

- - 7.520 7,520

10,431,833 (13,105) 786.680 11.205,408

§ 13,169,469 § 42,756 % 791,007 § 14,003,232

See notes to financial statements.

13



CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED
JUNF. 30, 2009

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Total governmental (und balances above $ 11.205.408

Capital assets not reported above 34,285,857

Nole receivable not reported above 815.000
Nolex payable not reporiced above (815.000)
Compensated absence accrual not reported above (275,791)
Other posiemployment benetits nol reporied above (31.839)
Deterred revenues from property tixes and intergovernmental revenues reported above,
reported as revenues in (he government-wide statement of net assets 154,341
Net assets ol governmental activitics in the statement of net asscls $ 45335976

Sce notes 1o Mnancial statements.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR END JUNE 30, 2009

Capital Nonmajor Total
Geaceral Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1948,137 § - 3 - § 1948137
Intergovernmental revenues 8.710,755 - 275,053 $.985.810
Federal and state grants 1,338,157 - - [.33R.157
Charges for services 303,158 - - 303,158
l.icenses and permils 239 861 - - 239861
Fines and forfeitures 109,318 - 76,311 185,659
Interest revenue 216.938 - 11,900 228838
Miscellancous 252,292 - 21,279 273,571
Total revenucs 13.118.616 - 384,575 13.503.191
EXPENDITURES
Currenl pperdtions:
Geoeral gavernment 2516.939 - - 2,516,939
Cuy court 16,153 - - 16,153
Airport 116,649 - - 116,649
Cemelery 47532 - - 47,532
Parks and ccereation 1.021.147 - - 1,021,147
Planning and zoning 176941 - - 176,941
Public safety 4,711,520 - 21,193 4732713
Sanitation - - 359 4670 159,162
Streets 1,408,565 - 2386 2 1,667,207
Tourism development 34,195 - - 34,198
Capital outlay ),105.855 2273468 126,364 3.505.087
Debl service:
Principal 1,568,000 - . 4.568.000
Interest 111,508 - 111,508
Total expenditures 15.835,004 2.273.468 765,661 18,874,133
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (2,716.388) (2.273.468) (381.086) (2.370,942)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds rom loans payable 079,037 - - 979037
Transfer from other funds - [Us2911 RRURITN 2.312.376
l'ransfer 1o other funds (2.312.376) - - (2.312,376)
(1.333,339) 1,952914 359,462 079,037
CONTRIBUTIONS TO NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS 815,203 - - 815,203
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (4,864,930) (320,554) (21.624) (5.207,108)
IFUND BALANCE, .fune 30, 2008 15,296,763 307,449 808.304 16,412,516
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2009 $ 10,431,833 § (13,105) § 786,680 S 11.205,408

Sce notes (o financial statements.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

RECONCILIATION OF NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES TO CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net change in fund balances as reported in the governmental funds statcments $ (3.207.108)

Property contributions not recorded in the povernmental funds statcments
but recognized as revenue in the government-wide statements 076,014

Decrease in deferred revenues for properly taxes including allowance tor doubtful accounts,
in the governmental funds not recognized in the govemment-wide stalements (88,7906)

Collections on note receivable recorded as revenue in the governmental funds stadements but

reflected as a reduction (0 the nale receivable halance in the government-wide statements (43.000)

Proceeds from capital asset dispositions recorded as revenue in the covernmental Mends
statcments but recorded as a component of gain on disposition of capital asscts
in the government-wide statements (8.525)

Proceeds Nrom Joans payable recorded as revenue in the governmental funds statements
but rellected as long-term debt in the government-wide statements (979.037)

Amounts reported as expenditures in the governmental funds siatements not included
as expenses in the government-wide statements: .
Capital outlays 3,505.687
Payments on long-terin debt 4,568.000

Expenses and revenues in e poverniment-wide statements not included in the governmental fund
statements:

Depreciation expense (1,328,984}
Amortization ol debt issuance costs (29.741
Increase in acerued compensated abscnces (44.518)
Increase in other postemployment benefits (33.839)
Gan on digposal of capuial assets 8.525
Change monet assets of governmental activilies in the statement of activities $ 1,294,708

Sce notes to financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounls payable
Accrued payroll and payrol) taxes
Other accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

LIABILLTIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Current matoritics of long-term debt

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATION

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Rexsiricted for:
Capital projcets
Debt service
Unreatricted

Water and

Sewer

_Department

230,615
27N
27.010
20,876

305,656

964,044

67.230

15,550,483

9231

33,697,041

1,357,625
179,050
3,874,204

39,107,900

55,984,544




CITY OF CROSSVILLFE, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
Waler revenuves

Sewer revenues

Other operating revenucs
OPERATING EXPENSES

Transmission and distribution

Customer accounting and collection

Administrative and general

Depreciation and amortization
OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)

Interest iicomne

Interest expense

Loss on disposal on capital assets
Other income (expenses)

INCOME BEFORFE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, June 30, 2008

NET ASSETS, June 30, 2009

Sec notes to financial statements.
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Water and

W,

Scwer Percent of
Department Revenues
$ 4.611.278 66.8%

1,874,436 27.1%
6,485.664 93.9%

123,926 6.1%
6.909.590 100.0%
3,628,848 52.5%
600,861 8.7%
181.349 2.6%
2,090,470 30.3%
6,501,528 94.1%
408,062 359%
95.092 1.4%
(5329011) -7.7%
(3.041) -0.1%
2,131 0.0%
(440,729) -6.4%
(32.667) -0.5%
1,485,268 21.5%
1,452,601 21.0%
37,655.299
$ 39,107,900




CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNL 30, 2009

CASII FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Payments {a suppliers for goods and services
Payments (o or on behalf of employees for services
Nel cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Acquisition of utility plant
Proceeds front disposal of utihty piant
Payments of short-term payable for prior year utility plant additions
Interest paid (net of interest capitalized to utility plant)
IPrincipal payments on long-term debt
Other noneperating incame
Net cash used by capital and rclated financing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received
Nct cash provided by investing activilics
NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2008

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. .lune 30, 2009

See notes to Minancial statements.
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Water and

Sewer

Department

g

6.986.182
(3.214,6806)
(1,776.489)

995,007

264511
(3.963.094}
4.005
(60.318)
(522.420)
(1,593,951

2,131

(5.569,1306)

95,092

05,092

(3.779.037)

7.187,724

g

3,408,687
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH ELOWS - CONTINUED

PROPRIETARY FUND

YFEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Water and
Sewer
Department

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income $ 408,062
Adjustments (o reconcile operating income (o net cash provided
by opuraling activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,090,470
Changes in operating asscts and liabilities
Accounts reccivable 85.850
Unbillcd revenue (9.258)

(139.601)

(444.242)

Matcrials and supplics
Other current asscts
Accaunts payable

Accrued payroll and payrcll taxes (8.643)
Other accrucd habilifies (1.472)
4,610

Accrued compensied absences
Other past employment benefiis obligation 9,231

Totat adjustments 1,586,945

1.995.007

Nel cash provided by operating activitics $

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Utility plant contributed (o (he City by deveiopers $ 829.264

Purchase of utility plant Nnanced by accounts payable 158.859

Sce noles (o financial statements.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNLESSEE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

REVENUES
l'axes
Interpovernmental revenues
Federal and state grants
Charges lor servives
Licenses and permits
IFines and forfeitores
Interest revente
Miscellancous
Total revennes
EXPENDITURES
General government
City court
Airport
Cemelery
Parks and recreation
Planning and 7oning
Public safety
Strecty
Tourism development
Capital outlay
Debr service:
Principal
Interest
Total cxpenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Procecids from loans payabhle
Transler o other funds

CONTRIBUTIONS TO NON-PROFIT

ORGANIZATIONS

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE, Junc 30,2008
FUND BALANCE, .Tunc 30,2009

Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Amounts
$ 1,780,000 1,780,000 1,948,137
9.415.775 9.415.775 8.710,755
2,442,346 2,555,646 1,338,157
331,430 331,430 303,158
321,000 321,000 239,861
147,600 147.600 109318
$90,000 590,000 216938
149,430 149,430 252.292
15.177.581 15,290,881 [3.118.6106
2.796.035 2,766,344 2,516,939
19,250 19,437 16,153
188,825 135,650 116.649
72.000 72,000 47532
1.223.050 1,256,890 1.021.147
244,250 244,250 176,941
5,228.317 5,225,217 4,711,520
2,108.900 1.667.482 1.408,565
40,900 42,400 34,195
2,235,600 2,912,693 [,105.835
298.000 4.798.000 4,568.000
255,030 255,030 111,508
14,710,157 19,395,393 15,835,004
467,424 (4.104.512) (2.716.388)
779,994 779.994 979.037
(3.651,594) (3.722,594) (2,312,376)
(2.871.600) (2,942,600) (1.333.339)
491,416 856,186 815,203
(2.895.592) (7.903.298) (4,864.,930)
15,296,763 15,296,763 15,296,763

$12,401,171

$ 7,393,465

$ 10,431,833

Sce notes to Mnancial statecments.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Anioun(s
FEXPENDITURES
Capital outlay $ 3,0098744 % 3519744 § 2273468
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (3.198,744) (3.519.744) (2.273.,468)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer from other funds 3.198,744 3.519,744 1,952,914
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - {320,554)
FUND BALANCE, Junc 30, 2008 307,449 307,449 307,449
FUND BALANCE, June 30,2009 $ 307449 § 307449 §  (13,109)

See notes (o financial statements.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Crossville, Tennessee (City™) is a municipal corporation, incorporated under the laws of the
State of Tennessee in 1901 under Chapler 362. The City provides planning and zoning, public safety,
public works, parks and recrcation, solid wasie, and waler and scwer services 10 residents and businesses
of the City among other things. The City is coverned by a mayor, mayor pro-tem and three council
members.

I'he accounting and fnancial reporting policics of the City in its basic financial statements conform (o
generally aceepted accounting principles applicable (o state and local govermments. Generally accepied
accounting principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“*GASB™) and by ihe Financial Accounting Standards Board (vwhen
applicable). As aliowed in Section P80 of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accownting aind
Financial Reporting Siundards, the City has elected not (o apply o its proprietary activities Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations issued afier November 30, 1989,

{. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial stalements include the acconnts of all City operations. The criteria for
including arpanizations as component units within the City’s reporting entity, as sel forth in Section
2100 of GASB’s Codification of Genernmental Acconnting and Financiul Reporting Standuards.
melade whether:

s The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)

. The City holds the corporate poveis of the arganization

. The City appoints a voling majority of the organization's hoard

s The City is able (o impose its will on (he organization

. ‘The oreanization has tie potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
o There is i Nscal dependency by 1 ereanization on the City

Bascd on the aforementioned criteria, the City of Crossville, Tennessee has no component units.

2. Basis of Presentation

Governmment-wide financial statementy

I'he City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (repurting the City as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the City's fuds), Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements calegorize primary aclivities as cither governmental or business-type. The City's
police and fire protection, public works, parks and recreation, planning and zoning, solid waste. and
general administrative services, among other things, are classified as govermmental activities. Survices
provided by the City's Water and Sewer Departinient are classified as business-type activities. In the
government-wide statement of nef assets, both the governmental and business-fype activities columns
(a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual. cconomic
resource basis, which recognized all long-lerm assets and receivables as well as long-term oblipations.

W
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A.

CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES - CONTINUED

Basis of Presentation - continued

The City's net assets are reported in three categories — mvested in capita) assets, net of related deb,
restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. When both restricled and unrestricted resources are
available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resourees fivst, and then unrestricted
resources as they are needed. Also, the City does not allocate indirect costs 1o functions.

The government-wide statement of activities reports both the gross and net cost ofeach of the City’s
governmental functions and business-type activities. The funciions are also supported by seneral
government revenues such as property taxes and intergoveramonial revenues, The statement of
activities reflects gross expenses (including depreciation) reduced by related chiipex for services,
operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions. Charges for services mus( be
dircetly assoctated with (he function or a business-type activity. Operating grants ind contributions
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants waile the capital
grants and countributions column reflects capital-specific grants.

The government-wide focus 1s more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in
the City’s net asscls resulting from the current year’s activities.

Fund financial statements

The financial transaclions of the City arc reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements,
Fach fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts thit comprise ifs
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. The various funds are reported by generic
classification with'n the financial statements.

The City uses the following fund types:

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds' measuremient (in (he fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial posilion (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of
the vovernmental (unds of the City:

Gueneral Fond s the general operating fund of the City. It is used 1o account for all
lnancial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special revenue funds arce used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The special
revenue funds of the City consist of the Capital Projects Fund, Drug Fund, Industrial
Development Fund, Solid Waste Fund and State Street Aid Fund.

24
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSERE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

2.

J.

Basis of Presentation - continued

Proprieiury funds

The focus of proprietary fund measnrement ‘s upon determination of operating income,
changes in net asseis, financial position, and ci-h flows. The generally accepted accounting
principles applicable are thosc similar to businesses in the privale seclor. The only
proprietary fund of'the City is an enterprise fund which is used (o account for operations for
which a fec is charged ta external nsers for goods or services and the activily (a) is financed
will debt that is solely sceured by a pledge of the net revenves, (b has 1hird party
requireinents that (he cost of providine scrvices, including capital costs, be recovered with
fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to
recover similar costs. The Cily's only enterprisc fund consists of the Waler and Scwer
Department Fund, which accounts for the operation of the City's waler and sewer service,

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized inlo a single column.
GASD Statement No. 34 sets forth nunimum criteria (percentage of the assets, habilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of cither fund calegory or the governmental and enterprise combied) for the
determination of major funds. The City s major governniental funds consistof the General Fund and
the Capital Projeets Fund, and the City's major proprietary fund is the Water and Sewer Department
Fund. The City's no-major governmental funds are the Drug FFund, Industrial Development Fund,
Solid Waste Fud and State Street Aid Fund.

Basis of Accounling

Busis of accounting refers (o the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made
reeardless of the measurement focus applied. Both governmental and business-type activities in the
rovermnent-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial stalements are presented on
the accrual basis of accaunting. Revenues are recoomzed when carned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. The governmental (unds financial statements are presented on the modified acerual
basis of accounting. Under the modified acerual basis of accounting, revenues are recerded when (hey
ar¢ both measurable and available. “Available™ means collectible within ihe current period or within
60 days afier the end of the year.

N
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009

A, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

3.

Basis of Accounting - continued

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the reated
liability is incurred. Principal and interest on eeneral obligation long-term debt, if'any, is recognized
when duc.

Since the governmental funds financial statements are presented on a different basis than the
povernmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation s
provided immediately following cach Tund statement. ‘These reconciliations briefly explain the
adjustiments necessary 1 (ransform the fund financial Statements into (he gavernmental activities
column of the government-wide tinancial stalements.

Onthe proprietary fund financial statements, operating revenucs are those that flow direetly from the
operations of the uetivity such as charges (0 customers lor the purchiase of coods and serviees.
Operating expenses are those (that are incurred to provide those poods and services. Non-operating
revenues and expenses ave items related 1o financing and invesling activitics.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cagh on hand. demand deposits, and highly
liquid investments purchased with maturitics of ninety days or less from the date of acquisition,

Restricted Assets and Reservations of Fund Balances

Restricted assets include cash and cash cquivalents of the General Fund (goveramental fund) (o
upgrade fow income housing. Restricted assets also include cash and cash equivalents in the Capital
Projects Fund and Nonmajor Governmental I'unds (covernmental funds) 10 be used for capital
projects, street maintenance and improvements, drug cnforcement and industrial development.

Reservations of lund balances consist of covernmental fund balances that are legally scgregated for
specific usage or commitments to outside third partics.

[nventories
Inventories in the governmental funds represent supplies for the solid waste departmem and streel
department. Inventorics in the proprictary fund consist of marerials and supplics tised in the water and

sewer depariment. Materials and supplies in governmental and proprictary funds are stated at cost
determined by the firsi-in. fiest-out (FIFO) method.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

7.

Internal Balances

If there are any residual reccivable or payable balances outstanding between the governmental
aclivities and business-type activitics, they are reported in the government-wide financial statements
as “internal balances”.

Receivahles

In the zovernment-wide financial statements receivables consist of atl revenues camed at June 30 and
not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property 1axes
(§1,907,642). intergovernmental revenues (S1.499.394), and other receivables (S506,268). Major
receivable balances for the business-type activities consist of billed and unbilled charges (o waler and
sewer customers. Allowances for uncollzetible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends
and the penodic aging of accounts reccivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30,
2009 totals $93.172 for the governmental activities and $14,000 for the business-type activities.
Additionally, the City wrote off approximately $58,000 of accounts receivable during the year which
1s mcluded in revenues in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets of the
proprictary fund.

In the governmenta) funds financial statements non-exchange transactions, such as assessed property
taxes thal are collectible but not available, are recorded as deferred revenues in accordance with the
modified accrual basis of accounting,

The Water and Sewer Fund receivables consist of billed charges to customers and unbilled charges
et of an allowance for doubtful accoupts. Unbilled revenues represent the extimated receivable
amount tor services that have not been billed to custemers at the balance sheet date. The amounts are
aresult of a timing diiterence between the end of the [inancial statement cycle (month end) ang (he
billing cycle (vartous dutes within the mouth for each billing period).

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital asscrs, whnch include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, arc reporied in the
applicable governmental or business-lype activities column in the govermment-wide financial
statements and in the fund financial stalements for proprietary funds. Capital assets used in
governmental fund operations are accounled for as capital expenditurcs of the covernmental fund
upon icquisivon, All purchased capital asets are valued at iisterical cosl or estimated historical cost
el cost is notavailable, Donated capital assets arce recorded at their estimated fair value on the

dite donated.

Assets capitalized, not including general government mirastructure asscts, have an original cost of’

$5.000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. General government infrastructure
assets capilalized have an original cost of $10,000 or more for sireets, sidewalks,
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUFED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

10.

Capital Assets and Depreciation - continued

and an original cost of $20.000 or more for traffic signals, street lighting, and dramage systems.
Maintenance and repairs, including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a refirement
unit, are charged (o the appropriate maintenance or other expense accounts. Depreciation of capital
assels is computed and recorded in the statement of activities with accumulated depreciation reflected
in the stalement of nel assels.

Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimared useful lives nsing the straight-lme method. The
tange of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Depreciable Life
Governmental activities:

Baildings and building improvements 40 years

Infiastiacture issets 40 years

Machinery and equipment 3~ 7 years
RBusiness-type iactivities:

Water and sewer plant 20— 40 years

Machinery and cquipment 3 - 7 years

Unpaid Compensated Abhsences

The City's policies permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave up to a
maximum of 240 howrs, except fire depariment employees may accumulate up to a maximum of 318
hours. Any unused earncd vacation leave in excess of the maximum is rolled over (0 accrued sich
feave. Employees are paid their unused vacation hours upon @ermination. Also. all cinployces may
accumulate sick leave without limitation. At retirement, ecmployecs are not paic for unased sick leave,
but unused sick leave fime is credited 1o service fime for retivement perposes, Any employee who
ccases employment, other than due o retirement, (orfeits allunused earned sick leave. The liability (ol
compensaled absences (unnsed vacation fime) is recorded as long-term debtin the government-wide
statements for governnent activitics and 1or buginess-type activitics. The current portion of the
compensated abscnces 18 cstilmated based on historical (rends. In the fund financia) statemaents,
povernmental funds report only the compensated absence hiability payable from expendable available
financial resources,

Bonod Discounts, Premiunis and Issuance Costs

Bond discounts and premiums are capitalized and amortized using the straight-linc method over the
term of (he debt issucs which does not differ significantly from the interesr method. Also. debt
Issuance costs are capitalizcd and amortized using the straight-line method over the term of (he debe
ISsues.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscls
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from thosc estimates in the near term
and these variations can have a material effect on these financial statements,

B. STEAWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

[15)

RBudgetary Control

The City’s fiscal operating year is the twelve-month period beginning cach July 1*'. An anpual
operating budget is submitted to the Mayor and Council Members prior to the commencement of the
related fiscal year, and a budget resolution for the vear is subsequently adopted. The City Manager is
authorized 1o (ransfer budget amounts between line items within each deparmment, but any other
revisions or amendments require Council Members approval. All annual appropriations not expended
lapse at fiscal vear-end. The budgetary appropriations constitule maximum expenditure
authorizations during the fiscal year, and cannot legally be exceeded unless subsequently amended by
the Mayor and Council Members.

Inter-fund Transactions

Operating transters by individual (unds of the City for the iscal year ended June 30, 2009 consist of
the following:

Purpose Receivable [Fund Payable Fund Amount
Transfers:
Solid wasle collection cosis Solid Waste General § 388,166
Capital asset construction and
acquisition costs Capnal Projeets General 4,601,690

$ 5,049,856
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City is authorized by state statule (o nvest idle funds in obligations of the U.S. Government and
nonconvertible debt securitivs of the Fedeiral Home Loan Bank, Federal National Morteaze Association,
Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal THome Lcan Mortgage Cotporvation and other obligafions that are
guaranteed as to principal and interest by (he (1.S. Government or any of its agencices, provided that such
securities are rated in the highest category by at least two nationally recopnized rating services. The City
also may investin cenificaies of deposit and other cvidences ol deposit at stare and federal chartered banks
and savings and lean assoctations if those deposits are insurcd or otherwise collateralized. The City also
may tnvest inobligaions of the U.S. Government or its agencics under a repurchase agreement. if the state
dircctor of local Yinance approves repurchase agreements as an authorized investment. Finatly, the City
also may invest in the local government investment pool established by title 9. chapler 4, part 7 of the

Tennessee Code Annotated.

State stafutes require the City’s investments to have a final maturity date not to exeeed forly-cight monthis,
unless the state director of Iocal finance approves an invesunent maturity in excess of forty-cight months.
The City has no formal investment policics (hat further resrict intevest vate risk, credit risk or custodial risk
beyond the requirements of'state statutes. Also, the City has no formal policy to linit the amouant the City
May INVESE in any ong issuer.

AtJune 30,2009, the City s only investiment consists of the Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool
(a cash cquivalent), an uarated external investment pool that operates in a manner consistent with the
Security and Exchange Commission’s Rule 247 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, Tivestments held
by the ‘Tennessee Local Governmment Investment Pool have a weighted average maturity of less (han 90
days. The City's tnvestmen( in the Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool totals $12.825,388 (at
fair valuc) at June 30, 2009,

PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real properly and tangible personal property used in
businesses located in the City. Property taxes are levied as of January | and become duc and payable from
August | through the end of November of each year. Taxes not paid by December | ave considered
delinquent. The lien for taxes levied each year attaches on the first dity of January and continues until such
laxes and any penalties, interest or other charges aceruing thereon are paid. Assessed values are established
by the State of Tennessee at the following ratwes of appraised value:
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNF. 30, 2009

D. PROPERTY TAX - CONTINUED

Real property:

Public utility properly 55%

Industrial and commiercial property 40%

Residential property 23%

[Farm property 25%
Personal properly:

Public utility property 55%

Business personal property 30%

A revaluation of all property is required fo be completed overy five vears, The last sevaloation was
completed in 2007, The City's 1ax rate applicable to 2009 wirsy $0.55 on cach $100 of (ax valuation.

NOTE RECEIVABLE

In November 2004. the City obtained a $1.000.000 loan from the Tennessee Municipal [eazne Bond Fund
(sce note 1) for the benefit of the Cumberland County Emergency Communications District (" Distriet™).
i hese funds were used by the Distriet 1o construcet a facility 1 house a 911 Emergency Call Center, the
Crossville and Cumberland County Central Communications Center, the 911 Addressing Office, the
Crossville and Cumberland County Emergency Manapement Office and the Crossville and Cumberland
County Imergency Operations Center, The District and Cumberland County have cacumbered the
property and the funds of the District to secure (he indebiedness incurred by the City. Repayment of (he
loa is being made by (he District maturing on May 25, 2021 at a variable inferest rate (0.39% at June 50,
2009). The government-wide balance sheet includes the loan reecivable ram the Districtat June 30. 2000
and the obligation of the City to Tennessee Municipal League Bond Fund of $813.000.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Ihe City is exposed o various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage 10, and destruction ot assels;
crrors and omissions; injuries (o @miployees: and natural disasters. 'The City participates in the Tennessee
Municipal Leacoe Risk Managemeni Pool (“the Pool™). The Pool operates as a caommon risk sharing pool
by which governments pool risks and funds and share in the costs of fosses. The City pays annual
premioms to the Pool for ils general liability insurance coverape, Jaw enforcement liability, errors and
umissions lability. aulo labiliry, workers® compensation and property coverage, The City's worker
compensation coveragpe is retrospectively rated, whereby premiums arc accruced based on the ultimale cosis
ol the experience of e City. Claims arisire are paid by the Pool. The Pool has the right oy gaess
participanis for logs expericace in exeess of premiums cofleeted. The City's sentled claims have not
exceeded insurance coveriage in any ol the past three iiscal vears.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

G. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Balance Additions Balance
June 30, and June 30,
2008 Transfers  Retirements 2009
Governmenial activitics
Capital asscts not being depreciated:
Land § 2,695282  $2,603,190 $ - 5298472
Construction in progress 4,347,179 (2,539,269) - 1.807.910
Subtolal 7.042.461 63,921 - 7.106.382
Other capilal assels:
Buildings and improvements 5.832.462 563.774 - 6.396,236
Machinery and equipment 5.644,443 733,041 (136,826) 6,240,658
Other improvements 8,085,371 1,810,495 - 0.895.866
Infrastruciure assels 15,908,079 1,310,500 - 17,218,579
Subtotal 35.470,355 4,417,810 (136,826) 39,751,339
Total capital assels 42,512,816 4,481,731 (136,826)  46,857.721

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings, machinery and cquipment

and other improvements (7,701,896) (910,005) 136,826 (8,475,075)
Infrastruciure asscls (3,677,810) (418,979) - (4,0906,789)
Subtolal (11.379,706) (1,328,984) 136,826 (12.571,864)
Nel capital asscls $31,133,110  $3,152,747 % - $34,285.857

Depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government $ 136,040
Public safcty 348,919
Public works 495,048
Cemetery 3.603
Airport 102,882
Sanitation 1,496
IParks and recreation 230,452
Plarning and zoning 10,544

$ 1,328,984
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEFE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
G. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION - CONTINUED

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as lollows:

Balance Additions Balance
June 30, and June 30,
2008 Traosfers  Retirements 2009
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
ILand $ 424236 § - $ - $ 424236
Construction in progress 1.548.501 1.640.568 - 3.189.069

Subtotal

Other capital assets:

1,972,737

1.640.568

3.613.305

Water and scwer planl 69.007,823 2.986.758 (12,100) 71,982,481
Machinery and equipment 3,406,269 336,755 (307,926) 3,435,008
Sublotal 72,414,092 3,323.513 (320,026) 75.417,579
l'otal capital asseis 74,386,829 4,964,08| (320.020) 79.030,884
Less accumulated depreciation:

Water and sewer plant (24.043.943)  (1,911.694) 3,054 (25,952.583)
Machinery and equipment (2,856.768) (166,168) 295,042 (2,727.894)
Subtoral (26,900.711)  (2,077,862) 298.096  (28,680,477)

Net capital asscts $47,486,118 $2.886,219 $  (21,930) $50,350,407

Depreciation expense related to capital assets used in business-lype activitics for 2009 totaled $2.077.862.



W

N
CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEFR.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
H. LONG-TERM DEBT

The City's long-term debt is segrepated between the amounts to be repaid from governinental aclivitics
and amounts (o be repaid from business-type aclivitics.

The following (able summarizes the City’s governmental long-term debt at June 30, 2009:

Governmental Activities

Loan payable 10 1he Public Building Authority of 'T'he City of Clarksville. Tennessec,
dated November 17, 2004, maturing between May 25, 2005 and 2024 al a variable
interest rate determined by (he remarketing agent (0.39% at June 30, 2009), interest
payahle monthly, and principal payments ranging from $22,000 o $66.000 pavabte

annualty on May 23(h of cach year. S 815,000
Accrued compensated absences 275.791
Other post employment benefit obligation 33,839
Total governmental activity debt 124,630
Less amounts due within one year (109,389)
[.ong-term governmental activily debt $1.,015,24)

In November 2004, the City entered into a loan agreement with 'The Public Building Authority of The City
of Clarksville, Tennessee. The nole principal and related interest is a direct oblication of the Cily and is
backed by the Toll faith and credit of the City. Also, the Cily pledyes (o levy and collect ad valorem faxes
sufTicient to pay the debt service obligations under this agreement.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNFESSEFE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED
The following table summanizes the City’s business-type activity long-lerm debt at Junc 30, 2009:

Business-Type Activitics

LLoan payable to the Public Building Authority of The City of Crossville, Tenncasee, Waler
System Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, matusing between Julv 1, 2005 and 2028 at fixed
intcrest rates ranging from 3.85% ta 5.00% payable semiannually on Janmary 1 and July 1, and
principal payments ranging from $135,000 to $350,000 arc payable annually on fuly [st of
cach year, $ 4.610.000

Note payable 1o State ol Tennessce, Wastewater Facility Revolving 1 oan Fund. due in
manthly installments of $28,980, including interest at 1.77%, through Seplember 2023, 1378457
Loan payable 1o (he Public Building Authority of I'he City ol Clarksville. [eonessee, Serics
1997, maturving betwveen May 25, 2001 and 2019 al a variable interest rate determined by the
remarketing agent (2.22% at June 30, 2009) payable monthly and principal payments ranging
lrom $154,350 to $371,450 are payable annually on May 25th ot cach year. 3011.630
USDA Walcr and Scewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2003, due in monthly installinents of
F11.518, including interest at 4.25%, throngh November 2028. 1.824.402
Note payable 10 State of Tennessee, Wastewater Facility Revolving Loan Fund, due in
monthly installments of $5.872. including interest at 1.47%. (hrough May 2024. 943,210
Naote payable to State of Tennessee, Wastewaler Facility Revolving Loan Tund. due in
monthly installments ol $14,224, including interest at 2.64%, through July “014, 811.099
Note payable 1o State of Tennessee, Local Development Aathority, doe in monthly
mstallments of $9,991, plus variable interest (6.16% at Junc 30, 2009). through April 2015 692 906
Loan payable 1o the Public Building Autherity ot The City of Clarksville, Tennessev, Series
1995, maturing between May 25, 1999 and 2010 at a variable interest rate determined by the
remarketing agent (2.22% at Junc 30, 2009} payable monthly and principal payments ringing

from $229,700 to $436.700 are payable annually on May 25th of cach year. 50.600
Note payable to State of Tennessce, Wastewater Facility Revolving Loan Fund, due in
monthly installments ¢f §2,284. including interest at 1.47%. (hrough Annust 2024, 372374
16,694,708

Accrued compensated absences 88.106
Other past employment benefit obligation 0,231
Plus net premium on debt refunding 15,721
|.ess deferred loss on defeasance (215,902)
Total business activity deblt 16.591.,864
I.ess amounts duc within one year, net of current portion of net premium oh debt

refunding and delerred loss on defeasance {984,920)
lLong-term business-activity debt 5 13.606,94:



CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCJAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

The City entered into a loan agrecment with The Public Building Authority of The City of Crossville,
Tenmessee in connection with the Water System Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, As scewrity for the
payment of principal and interest on the bonds. the City has pledged the net revenucs to be derived from
the opcration of the water systemi. In addition, the payment of principal and interest on (he bonds is
euaranteed by an insurance policy issucd by MBIA Insurance Corporation. MBIA Insurance Corporation
was raled BBB by Standard and Poor's and Ba3 by Moody’s Investor Service at June 30, 2009 and was
downgraded 1o BB+ by Standard and Poor’s on Scptember 28. 2009, In accordance with the loan
sorcement, the Crty is required (o maintain a Bond and Interest Sinking Fund. Monthly cash (ransfers to
the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund musi be sufTicient 1o pay the interest due on the next succeeding
irterest payment date and the principal due on the next suceeeding principal payment date. This fund is
restricted for specific purposcs and has no balance at June 30, 2009 becanse the bond principal and interest
payment is made at the end of the fiscal year. Finally, the loan asreement also requires the City to establish
ralus Lo its customers in order ta maintain a debt service coverape raio of not less than 1.20 to 1. The City
is in compliance with this debt covenant at lune 30, 2009,

The four noles payable 10 the State of ‘Tenniessee, Wastewater Facility Revolving Loan Fund, the two loans
payable to the Public Building Authority of the City of’ Clarksville, Tennessee (Serics 1997 and Series
1995), the USDA Serics 2003 Bonds and the note payable 1o State of Tennessee Local Development
Authority are dircct obligations of the City. arc backed by the full faith and credit of the City, and are
secured by a lien upon and pledge of the net revenues of the water and sewer system. Also, the Caty
pledges to levy and collect additional iaxes, (o the extent necessary, to meet the debt service obligations

under these agrecments. In addition, the City also pledges and assivns other additional available sources of

revenucs as necessary (0 secwre the payment egual to (he maximom annual debt service requirements.

In fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City issued refunding bonds (Series 2003) 10 defease curtain
outstanding bonds for the purpose oi’debt consolidation and to achieve debt service savings. The City has
placed the procecds from (he refunding issue in an irrevocable escrow account with a trust agent (o insure
payment of all future debt service on (he refunded bonds. Accardingly. the frust account asscts and
fiabilities for the defeased bonds are not mcluded in the City's financial statements. Althouph defeased. (he
refunded debt will pot actually be retired umil the first call dates or unfil marturity if they are not callable
issucs. At June 30, 2009, $4.610,000 of bonds outstanding is considered defeased.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
H. LONG-TERM DERBT - CONTINUED
The annual debt service requirements 10 maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt
(excluding accrued compensaled absences and other post employment benefit obligation) as of June 30,
2009, are as follows:
Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 44000 § 3,179 § 47,079 & 974533 § 400,163 § 1374696
200 45.000 3.007 48.007 1.113.654 467,272 1,580,926
2012 46,000 2,831 48,831 1,144,309 435,269 1,579,578
2013 48.000 2.652 50657 1,175,931 402,214 1,578,145
2014 49.000 2465 Stoi6s ).213,548 367,981 1.581.529
2015-2019 270.000 9,325 279325 5220488 1,389.869 6,619.357
2020 - 2024 313,000 3.729 316.729 3,684,423 734911 4419,334
2025 - 2029 - 2,158,822 208,345 2,367,167

$ 815000 $ 27,188 § 842,188 $16694.708 $4,406.024 $21,100.732

I. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Following is a summary of chanpes in governmenial aclivity long-lerm debt lor the year ended June 30,
2009:

Balance Balance Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within
2008 Increases Decreases 2009 Onc Year
Governmenial Activities
Loans payablc to the Public
Building Authority of The
City of Clarksville, I'N $ 4378963 § 979,037 § (4.,543.000) 815,000 % 44000
Capiial Outlay Note 25,000 - (25,000) - -
4,403,963 979,037 (4.568,000) 815,000 44,000
Plus ofher post emplovment
benefit obligation - $2.091 (18.252) 13.839 -
Plus accrued
compensaled absences 231,273 112.456 (67,938) 275.791 65,389
$4.635,236 $ 1,143,584 S (4,654,190) $ 1,124,630 $109.389

1he general fund has been ased in prior years to liquidaic long-term liabifitics.
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CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - CONTINUED

2009:

Business-Type Activities

L.oan payable (o the Public
Building Authority ol The
City of Crossville, TN

Notes payable to the
State of Tenncssce,
Waslewaler Faciliry
Revolving Loan Fund

Loans payable (o the Public
Building Authority of The
City of Clarksville, TN

USDA Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax Bonds,
Scries 2003

Nates payable (o the
State of Tennessee,
I.ocal Development
Authority

Plus net premium on
debt refunding

l.ess deferred less on
defcasance

Plas other post employment
benefit ablipation

PMus accrued
compensated absences
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
Following is a summary of chanpes in business-lype activity long-term debt for the year ended June 30,

Balance Balance Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within

2008 Increascs Decreases 2009 One Ycear

$ 4.770.000 § - % (160,000) § 4.610.000 § -

6,998,046 - (492.876) 6.505.170 502,726

3.682.570 - (620.340) 3.062.230 200,040

2.018.801 (194.399) 1,824,402 61.873

819,242 L (126.,336) 692.906 110,892

18,288,659 (1.593,951) 16,694,708 974533

16,544 - (823) 15.721 824
(227.216) - 11.314 (215.902) (11.313)

- 9231 - 9,231 -

83,496 35,903 (31,293) 88.106 20,876

$ 18,161,483 % 45,134 § (1.614.753) $ 16,591,864 § 984,920
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSLEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

DEFERRED CONMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Intemmal Revenuc
Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employces, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary (o future years subject to maximurn deferral limitations provided in the plan. The deferred
compensition is not available 10 employees until termination, retirement, death or unforesecable
emergency. The plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees under the
Small Business Job Protection Actof 1996, Also, the City has little administrative involvement and does
not perform the investing function for the plan. As a result, the assets and habtlities associated with the
plan are excluded from the City’s balance sheets. The City does not contribute to the plan.

PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

Employees of the City are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-
cmployer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retitement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Bencfits are
determined by a formula using the member’s high five-year average salary and years of sexvice. Members
hecome eligible 1o retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service.
A reduced vetirement benefit 1s available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits arc
avanlable to active members with five years of service who became disabled and cannot engage in gainftul
cmployment. There is no service requirement for disability that is a result of an accident or injury
occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members jorning the system after July 1,
1979 become vested after five yvears of service and members joining piior o July 1, 1979 were vested
after four years of service. Benefit provisionsare established in state statutes found in Title 8, Chapter 34-
37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as City of Crossville, Tennessce participate in the TCRS as
individual entitics and are liable for all costs associated with (he operation and administration of their
ptan. Benefit improvements are not applicable 1o a political subdivision unless approved by the chief
governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessce Treasury

Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor, Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville,
Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be accessed at htip://treasury.in. gov/ers.

Funding Policy

The Cuy has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employces by assuming employee
contributions up 10 5.0 pereent of annual covered payroll.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNFESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED
Funding Policy ~ Conlinued
I'he City is required to contribute at an acluarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ended lune
30, 2009 was 14.41% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by

state statute. The coniribntion requirement for (he City is established and may be amended by the TCRS
Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the City's annoal pension cost of $803,119 (o TCRS was cqual to the
City's required and actual contributicns. The required contribution was determined as pan of the July |,
2007 actuarial valuaticn using (he frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Signihcant actuarial assumplions
usecl in the valuation include (a) ratc of return on invesiment of present and tuture assels of seven and one-
half percent per year compounded annually. (b) projected salary increases of four and three-fourths percent

(graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion atiributable fo the effects of

intlation on salaries), (¢) projecied three and one-half percent annual increase in the Social Sceurity wage
base, and (d) projected post retirement increases of (hree percent annually, The actuarial valie ol assets
was determined using lechniques that simooth the effect ol short-terin volatifity in the market value of (otal
investments over a five-year period. The City's anfunded actuarial acerued liability is being amortized as a
level dollar amount on a closed basis. I'he remaining amortization period at July 1, 2007 was cight years.
An actuarial valuation was performed as of July I, 2007, which established contribution rates effective
July 1,.2008.

Trend Information

Year Ended Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2009 § 803,119 100.0% 3 -
2008 807,351 100.0% -
2007 780.837 100.0% -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As ot July 1.2007, the most recent actuarial valuation dale, the plan was 85.78% percent tunded, The
actuarial acerned liability for benefits was $13,566,000, and the actuaria) value of assefs was $1 1,637,000,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liabitity (UAAL) of $1,929,000. The covered payroll (annual
payrolt of active employces covered by the plan) was $5,294,000, and the ratio of the UAAL 10 the
covered payroll was 36.44%,

The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values
of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Funded Status and Funding Progress - Continued

The annnal required contribution (ARC) was calculated using the aggregale actuanal cost method. Sinee
the apgrepate actuarial cost method docs not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilitics.
information about funded status and funding progress has been prepared using the enlry age actuarial cost
method for that purpose, and this information is intended (0 serve as surrogate for (he funded status and

lunding progress of the plan.

The following is a schedule of funding progress for the City:

Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unlinded Annual Percentage

Valuation Vilue of (AAL) AAL Funded  Covered of Covered
Date Plan Assets Entiy Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll

July 1,2007  §$11.637.000  $13.566,000 $1,929,000 85.78% § 5,294,000 36.44%

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the schedule of
funding progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. 'T'he requirement to present the schedule of
funnding progress using the entry age actuarial cost method was a change made during the year of the most
recent actearial valuation, therefore, only the most current year is presented.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City implemented (he provisions of GASB Stalement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Fmployers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
‘The provisions of this Statement were applied prospectively with respect 1o the City's postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPER). This slatement requires the accrual of OPEB obligations over the
working careers of plan members rather than as ¢cxpenscs for medical coveraoce are paid, which was the
method of accounting prior to 2009.

Plan Description - The City provides post-employment medical coverage 10 all employces and their
families until they are ehigible for Medicare benefits who retire with at least 30 years of service and are not
less than age 55 or with at least 20 years of scrvice and are not less than age 60. Any cost related to family
coverage (o the retirce is deducted from their retirement check. At July 1, 2007, the date of the last
actuarial valuation, the plan had 130 participants not cligible for henefits, 6 participants clivible for
benefits and 2 retirees receiving benefits. The Plan does not issue a financial report that includes financial
slatements and required supplementary informarion.

Funding Policy — The City currently pays for postenmiployment medical benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
During 2009, the City paid $18.252 for pusiemployment imedical benefits for four retirecs.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLF, TENNESSELE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPERB Obligation — The City’s annual other postemployment benefils
("OPEB™) cost (“expense™) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (“ARC™) of the
employer, an iumount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45,
The ARC represents alevel of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected (o cover normal cost
each ycar and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of each individual included
in the actaarial valuation, over the average remaining working lives of the employees. The following (able
shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the vear, the amount actually contributed fo the
plan. and changes in the City's nct OPEDR obligation:

\§

Governmental Business
Aclivities Activities Total
Annual required contribution (ARC) b 52,001 % 0231 $ 61,322
Interest an net OPER obligation - - -
Adjustment to annual required contribution - - %
Anmnoal OPEDR expense 52,091 9,23 61.322
Contributions made (18,252) - (18,252)
Increase in net OPER obligation 33,839 9,231 43.070
Net QP obligation - beginning of year - - -
Net OPER obligation - end of year $ 33839 § 9.231 § 43,070

The City's annual OPIFR cosl, the percentage ol annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPER obligation for 2009 is as follows:

FFiscal Year Annual Annual Yo of Annuoal Net Ending
Endcd OPEB Employer OPEB Cost OPEB
June 30, Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation / (Asset)
2009 $ 61,322 § 18,252 208% $ 43.070

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of July 1, 2007, thc most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $679,970. all ol which was unfunded. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active cimployces covered by the plan) wis $5.294,000 and the yatio of the unfunded
actuarial accrued lhability to the covered payroll was 12.& percen.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

The projection of future benefits payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amotunts and assumptions abouat the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples
include assumptions about future employment. morality, and the health care cost (rend. Amounts
determined reparding (he funded status of he plan and the annual required contributions of the employer
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and as new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding prowress, presented below, presents rend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative (o the actuarial accrued
liabilitics for benefits. Since the City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 in 2009 (prospectively), only
one year is presented.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types
of benefits provided at the time of cach valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members 1o that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
inchude techniques that are designed to reduce the effects ol short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
tiabilities and the actuarial value of assels, consixtent with the long-term perspective of the caleulations.

fnthe July 1. 2007 actuaria) valuation, 1he projected unit credit method was used. Aclive plan members
were assumed (o retire between age 5% and 65. Group annuity morlality tables were used as the basis for
assigning active niembers a probability of remaining employed unti? the assumed retirenient age and for
developing an expected future working lifetime assomption for purposes of allocating fo periods the
present value offotal benefits o be paid. The actuarial assumptions included a 3.0 percent invesinient rate
ol return (net of administrative expunses), based on (he City's expected refurns, and an annual healtheare
cost trend rate of 8.53% percent reduced each year by 0.5% until 3.5% s reached. The rate of inflation
(assumed rate of increase in payroll) was assumned at 3.0 purcent. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) is being amortized over thirty years. The remaining amorization period as of the July 1, 2007
acloarial valuation is thirly years.

Schedule of Funding Progress for tlie OPEB Plan:

UAALas a

Actuarial Actuarial Y% of
Actuarial Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a/b) (c) {({b-a)/c)
July 1,2007  § - % 679970  $ 679970 0.0% § 5,294,000 12.8%

M. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

AtJune 30, 2009, the Capital Projects 1-und has a deiicit fund balance inthe smount of $13,105. The City
plans to fund the deficit with assels from the General Fund.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
WATER SALES AGREEMENTS

In May 2007. the City cntered into a water sales agrecement with 1'all Creek Falls Utility District
("FCFUD™) as purchaser, and South Cumberland Utility District (“SCUD"™) as transpocter. T'he term of the
contract is for fwenty-five years beginning rom the date the transporler of the water begins delivering
water 10 the purchaser. The contract stipulates that the City will scll potable treated water up to 10,000,000
sallons per month to FCFUD. The initial contract price of the water is $2.77 foreach 1,000 gallons which
is subject to rate adjustment annually on January 1. During the vear ended June 30, 2009 no water was
sold by (he City to FCFUID under the lerms of this coniract.

o November 2006, the City entered into a water scrvices contract with SCUD (o provide all SCUD's
poltable water nceds so lony as SCUD's demands do not exceed the Ciry’s capacity (o furnish potable
water (o all City’s customers. The contract became cffective Janoary 1, 2007 and terminates on December
31,2017, unless extended by mutual agrecment by both partics. ‘i he initial confract price of the water is
$2.67 for cach 1,000 galfons which is subject 1o rate adjustiment annually on January 1™, The partics have
agreed that any rate increase to SCUD will be the same pereentane rate inerease as established by the City
for inside of City customers and shall become eflective al the same time as the rate increase to the City's
mside of City customers. During the year ended June 30, 2009, (he City sold 222,765,900 gallons (21.2%
of total gallons sold) totaling $594.785 (12.9% of (olal waler revenues) under (he 1erms of this contract.
Additionally, SCUD owes the City $50,989 at June 30, 2009.

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The Mayor and City Council arc responsible for appointing the board members of the Crossville Housing
Authority and the Public Building Authonity of City of Crossville, Tennessee. The City's accountability for
these organizations does not extend beyond making the appoiniments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The City of Crossville keases a building frony two City employ ces who tagether own i 50% interest in the
building, The lease is for a one year (erm expiring September 30, 2009 and requires the City to pay $975
per month,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

AtJune 30, 2009, the City is commitled on fulure capital expenditures of approximately S 884.000. Also,
the City has been approved for variovs capital granis (otaling approximately $1.033,000. Of (he
$1.653.000 of capital grants, $1.000.000 represents federal grants and $653,000 represents state grants. In
connection with these grants the City has commitied (o spend $3,892,000 of its own funds. These grants
are lor the constlruction costs of sesver plant and collection system upgrades.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Q. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED

The City also has been approved for a $1,284,000 loan from (he U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rurai
Development that is payable monthly over 38 years at an annual interest rate of 3.625% and an $800,000
erant in connection with the estimated construction costs of $3,300,000 for the Cumberland Cove water
line extensions to provide water scrvice to Cumberland Cove property owners. Additionally, the
Cumberland Cove Property Owners Association (“Association™) entered into a contract with the City in
April 2008 that requires the Association to pay the City an infrastructure development fec of $3,000.000
to be paid in annual payments of $1,000,000 with the first paymertdue on the date of the commencement
of the work. The contract also requires the Association to pay varous tap fees that are estimated to be
approximately $216,000. The City also has obtained a $1,300,000 Ictier of credit from the Association
that the City may draw upon if the Association is 30 days or more past due. As of June 30, 2009, no
construction costs have been incurred related to this project.

The City has entered inlo a contract in licu of a performance bond with the State of Tennessee,
Department of Environment and Conservation for proper operation and closure or post closure of the
Crossville Sanitary Landfill. The contract includes a provision allowing the Commissioner of the
Department of Enviroament and Conversation to collect up to $901,540 from the City from any funds
being disbursed from the State of Tennessee to the City as linancial assurance for proper operation,
closure and post-closure of the Crossville Sanitary Landfill,

In September 2009, the City has received a notice of violation of the Tennessee Water Quality Act from
the State of Tennessee, Department of Environment and Conservation, Division of Walter Pollution
Conlrol (WPC) in connection with the breach ¢f Caryonah Lake dam in August 2009 which allowed
fugitive sediment into the creck below the dam. The notice requesied the City 1o submit a plan (o either
restore impacts (o the creek or provide compensatory mitigation for the impacts. The City responded to
the notice that the breach of the diam was an unavoidable accident under the Walter Quality Control Act

and therefore the issuance of the notice of violation was unwarranted. WPC responded with a notice of

defictency indicating the City’s response was inadequalte and that civil penalties could follow if
mitigation plan was not submitted. Presently, the City is preparing a mitigation plan for submiission to
WP to restore impacts {o the creck. In connection with the breach of Caryonah Lake dam, the City
accepted a bid towaling approximately $468,000 from a contractor to repair the dam pending approval
from WPC.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES

Taxes
Property taxes
Special (ax assessments

Intergovernmental revenues
Business taxcs
l.ocal sales tax
Payments in lieu ol taxes
State sales and income tax

Wholesale, sate beer and liquor tax

Other (axes
Federal and stale grants
Federal vrants
Stale grants
Charges for services
Airport charges
Cemelery charges
Driver safety school charges

Park facility and concession charges

lLicenses and permits
Beer and liquor license fees
Ruilding permits
Franchize fees
Other permits
Fines and forfeitures
Court fincs and costs
Other fines and costs
Drug related fines and forleitures
Interest revenue
Miscecllaneous
Donations and coniributions
Insurance recoveres
Sale of property and equipment
Other revenues

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

General
Fund

Capital
Prajects
Fund

W

\..\

Total
Major
Governmental
Funds

$ 1,904,160 $ - % 1,904,160
43.977 - 43,977
510,290 - 510,200

6,380,623 - 6.380,623
165,337 - 165337
813,011 813.011
720,619 - 729.619
111,875 - 111,875
1,240,233 - 1,240,233
97,924 - 97.924
75.035 - 75.035
38.875 - 38.875
30.680 - 30.680
158,568 - 158,568
32.488 - 32,488
78.884 - 78,884
113,301 113,301
15,188 - 15.188
93,630 - 93,630
1,081 - 11,081
4.607 - 4,607
216,938 - 216,038
5,000 - 5,000
24,285 - 24,285
20,150 - 20.150
202,857 - 202.857
$ 13,118,616 $ ~ % 13,118,616

Scc independent audifor's report.
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EXPENDITURES

General government
Payroll and payroll taxcs
Employce benefils
Supplics
Utilitics
Repairs and mainlenance
Other operating cxpenses
Capttal outlay

City coult
Pavroll and pavroll (axes
Supplies
Other operating expenses

Airporl
Supplics
Ulilitics
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Capital outlay

Cemelery
Payroll and payroll taxces
Employee benefits
Supplies
Utilines
Repairs and maintenance

Parks and recreation
Payroll and payroll taxes
Lmployee benelils
Supplics
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenscs
Capital outlay

CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNIE 30, 2009

General
Fund

Tatal

Capital Major
Projects Governmental

Fund Funds

$  1,304.663
433.232
158,119
67,173

50.124
503,628
170,302

14,400
1391

362

1,720
28,727
26.716
594717

145951

30,752
10,603
3441
1.605
1131

418.155
090,233
143.390
233,/57
66,947
59,465
172,405

Sceeindependent auditor's report.
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- 418,155
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Tolal
Capital Major
Genera) Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Finds
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Planning and zoning
Payroll and payroll tises 109,770 109,770
Employee benelits 38,122 38.122
Supplics 10512 10,512
Utiiities 2,173 2173
Repairs and maintenance 1.632 1.632
Other operating expenscs 14,732 14,732
Public Salety
Payroll and payroll taxes 2872117 2,872.117
Fmployec benelits §78.656 - 878.636
Supplies 343.294 343.294
Utilities 48.731 48.731
Repairs and maintenance 101.568 IN1.568
Other operafing expenscs 467,154 467,154
Capstal outlay 218.675 218.675
Strecets
Payroll and payroll taxes 476,952 - 476952
Emplovee benefits 194,419 - 194419
Supplics 552,132 - 552.132
Utilities 32,746 - 32,746
Repairs and maintenance 127,682 127.682
Other operating expenses 24,634 24,634
Capital outlay 398,522 - 398,522
Tourism development
Supplies 929 - 920
Other operating expenses 33.266 33.266
Capital projects
Capital outlay - 2,273,468 2,273,468
Debt service
Principal 4.568.000 - 4.568.000
Inferest 111,508 - 111,508

$ 15,835,004

§ 2273468

$ 18,108,472

Sce independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVFERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
State Total
Industrial Solid Street Nonmajor
Drug Development  Waste Aid Government
Fund Iund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S - % - S - S - 5 -
Net receivables 47,606 - - 49916 97,522
Materials and supplies - - 7.520 - 7,520
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 74,526 550,979 - 60,460 085,965
Fotal assels $122,132  $ 550,979 s 7,520 % 110,376 $ 791,007
LLIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ -5 - 4 - % 4327 % 4327
Total liabilities - - 4,327 4,327
FUND BALANCES
Reserved 122,132 550979 - 106.049 779.160
Unreserved - . 7,520 - 7.520
Tetal fund balances 122,132 550,979 7,520 106,049 786,680
[ ctal liabilities an fund balances $122,132  § 550979 § 7,520 § 110376 $  791.007

Sce independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEF,

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENULES
Interpovernmenital revenues
State gasoline and moltor fuel Lax
Iines and forfeiures
Drug related Imes and forfeitures
Interest revenue
Miscellincous
Donations and contributions
Sale of property and equipment
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current operations:
Public safety
Supplies
Other vperating expenses
Sanifation
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Streets
Supplies
Street lighting
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USFES):

Transter from other (unds

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, Junc 30, 2008
FUND BALANCE, Junc 30, 2009

State Total
Industrial Solid Street Nonmajor
Drog Development Waste Aid (Giovernment
Fund Fund Fund Fund [Funds

$ - ¥ $ - 0§ 275055 % 275.055
76,341 - - - 76341
429 8.800 .67} 11.900
13,354 - - - 13,554
7,925 - 7,925
99,049 8.800 276,726 384.575
633 - - - 633
20,560 - - 20,560
- - 469 - 469

- - 358.993 - 358,993

- - - 4.652 4.652

- - ; 753,990 253.990
55,714 - - 70,650 126,364
76,907 - 359,462 329,292 765.661
22,142 8.800  (359.462) (52.5606) (381.086)
- - 359.462 e 359462

- 359,462 - 359.462
22,142 8,300 (52,566) (21,624}
99,990 542,179 7,520 158,615 808,304
$122,132 ¢ 550979 % 7,520 § 106,049 § 786,680

Scc independent avditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DRUG FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Actual
Budgct Budget Amounis
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures $ 8.000 % 8,000 S 76.341
Inlerest revenue 3.500 3,500 1,429
Miscellaneous 18,000 18,000 21,279
Tolal revennes 29,500 29,500 $59.049
EXPENDITURES
Public safcty 33.000 26,800 21,193
Capital outlay 56,800 63.000 55.714
Total expenditures 89.800 §9.800 76,907
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (60,300) (60,300) 22,142
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 99,990 09,990 99,990
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2009 $ 39,600 § 39690 § 122,132

Sce independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Actual
Budget Budgel Amounts
REVENUES
Interest revenue $ 42,000 42000 § 8.800
EXPENDITURES
Indusinal development - 5,000 -
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
ANDNET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 42,000 37,000 8.800
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 542,179 542,179 542,179
FUND BALANCY ., Junc 30, 2009 § 584,179 $ 579,179 § 550,979

Scc independent anditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SOLID WASTE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Miscellaneons $ 150 3 150§ -
EXPENDITURES
Sanilation 453,000 453,000 359,462
Total expenditures 453,000 453,000 359,462
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (452.,850) (452.850) (359.462)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfer from other funds 452,850 452,850 359,462
452,850 452,850 359,462
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
FUND BALANCE, Junt 30, 2008 7,520 7,520 7,520
FUND BALANCE, Junc 30, 2009 $ 7,520 % 7.520 S 7,520

Sce independent audifor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEF.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STATE STREET AID FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Actual
Budget Budgel Amounts
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues $ 300,000 § 300,000 275,055
Interest revenuc 8.000 8.000 1.671
Fotal revenucs 308,000 308.000 276,726
EXPENDITURES
Street mamtenance 255,000 255,000 258,642
Capital outlay 150,000 150,000 70,650
Total expenditures © 405,000 405.000 329,292
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND NE'T CHANGE IN FUND BALANCIE (97,000) (97,000) (52,566)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 158,615 158,615 158.613
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2009 $ 61,615 % 61,615 106,049

Sce independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE \Q(
\ 1
SCHEDULES OF LONG-TERM DEBT
JUNE 30, 2009

Governmenial Activities Long-Term Dcebi

Loan Payable to Public
Building Authority of the City
of Clarksville, Tennessee,
Ycar Ending dated November 17,2004

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 b 44.000 % 3,179 § 47179
2011 45.000 3.007 48,007
2012 46,000 2,831 48,831
2013 48.000 2.652 30,652
2014 49,000 2,465 51,465
2015 51.000 2,274 53,274
2016 52,000 2,075 54,075
2017 54.000 1,872 55,872
2018 56.000 1,661 57.661
2019 57,000 1,443 58.443
2020 59.000 1,221 60,221
2021 61,000 991 61991
2022 63,000 753 63,753
2023 64,000 507 64,507
2024 66.000 257 66,257

§ 815000 § 27,188 $842,188

See independent auditur’s report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULYF. OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAXES RECEKIVABLE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Balance Abatements Balance
Tax June 30, Tax and June 30,
Year 2008 Levy Collections Adjustments 2009

2008 $ - $ 1,915,107 $ 1,912,095 $ 28.674 $ 31,680

2007 36,904 - 24.689 3.038 15,253

2006 20,430 - 7.887 (6,302) 6.241

2005 8,545 - 3112 (2.179) 3,254

2004 20,282 - 607 - 19,675

2003 3,637 . 05 - 5,50

2002 2,650 . 441 - 2,209

2001 42 - 42 - -

2000 48 - 48 - -

1999 58 - 13 - 15

1998 42 - 42 - -

1997 67 - 33 - 34

1996 42 - 42 - -

1005 376 - 46 - 330

$ 95123 § 1915107 $ 1.949.222 Y 23,231 84,239

Penalty and interest 34,454
Subtoal 118,693
Deferred property tax revenucs for 2009 accrued 1,942,12)
2,060.814
|.css estimated uncollectible accounts 93,172)

$1,967,642

As of June 30, 2008 the City has certified with the Cumberland County Clerk and Master
delinquent taxes for the tax yecars from 1995 10 2006. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 the
City certificd with the Cumberland County Clerk and Master delinguent taxes for the tax year
2007.

Sce independent auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF TAX RATES AND ASSESSMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2009
Amount of Tax
Year of Levy Rate Assessment Assessed

1Dy S 0.70 3 175,403,000 $ 1,227,821
2000 0.70 188.252,57) 1,321,018
2001 0.70 IRS.385,615 1,321,018
2002 0.60 228,255,500 1.361,574
2003 0,70 236,291,000 1,654,037
2004 0.70 242,689,143 [,68%.79]
2005 0.70 243,531,287 1,704,184
2006 0.70 254,353,428 1,780,474
2007 0.55 335.255,490 1,844 424
2008 0.55 348,200,080 1,915,107
2009 055 383,111,723 1,942,121

See independent auditor’s report.
62



CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF WATER AND SEWER RATES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

(UNAUDITED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

WATER AND SFWER CUSTOMER RATES

First 2,000 gallons
Waltcr
Scwer

All over 2,000 aallons
Water
Sewer

Utility districts

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

Water customers
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Lnlity district taps

lI'otal water customers

Total sewer customers

[nside City Limits

Outside City Limits

$7.38 minimum bil}
9 00 minimum bill

3.69 per 1,000 gallons
4.50 per 1,000 gallons

$11.08 mivimuin bill
13.50 mininyum bill

5.54 per 1,000 gallons
6.75 per 1,600 gallons

2.67 per 1.000 gallons

Instde OQutside
City Limits  City Limits Total

3.662 6.817 10,479

1,194 77 1,271

s 6 41

- 5 S

4,891 6,905 11,796

1,626 7 4,643

See independen! auditor's report.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF UNACCOUNTED FOR WATER
(UNAUDITED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

(All amounts in gallons)

Walcr Treated and Purchased

Water pumped (potable) 1.342,738,098
Water purchased 0
Total Water Treated and Purchased }1.342.738.098

Accounted for Water

Walter sold 1,049.951,900

Melcered for consnmption (in house usage) 0

Firc department usage 65.900

[Flushing 3,645,519

T'ank cleaning/filling 0

Street cleaning 0

Bulk sales 0

Water bil) adjustments / plus or (iminus) 0
Total Accounied for Water 1,053.663,319
Unaccounted for Water 289.074.779
Percent Unaccounted for Water 21.5%

Note: For the year ended June 30, 2009, the City of Crossville, Tennessee also had 22.589.524 pallons of
water in documenlted repair [eaks which would reduce (he unaccounted for water to 19.8%. All amounts
included in this schedule are supporled by documentation on file af the water system.

Sce independent auditor's report.
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\&% ~ WoRrk & GREER, PC

I Cerrieo Pusrlic Accountants & Businiss CONSULLANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

IHONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
Crossville, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-fype activities, cach
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison for (he eeneral fund and
(he capital projects fond of City of Crossville, Tennessee, ("City™)y as of and lor the year ended June 30, 2009,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report (hercon dated
November 23, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United Statex of Amierica and the standards applicable (o financial augdits contaimed in Government Audditing
Standardy, issued by the Coniptrolicr General of the United States.

Inicrnal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting, Accardingly, we do not express an apinion on the efTectivencss of the City's internal
cantrol over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over tinancial reporting was for the imited purposc described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily sdentify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be signilicant deficiencics or material weaknesses. FHowever, as discussed below, we
identilied certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting thal we consider to be significant
deficiencics.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employces, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, (0 prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A signilican( deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize. record, process. or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepied accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
a misstatement of the City's linancial statemenis that is mare than imconsequential will not be prevented or
detected by the Ciry’s internal control. We consider (he deficiencies deseribed in the accompanying scheduole of
findings and questioned costs as items 09-01 and 09-02 to be signiticant deficiencies in internal controf over
financial reporting.

A materinl weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencics, that resulis in

more than a remote likelihcod that a materia) misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented ar
deteeted by the City's internal conrrol.

209 Sixri Avixer Nowen o Nasnvanr, Tenaissie 37219 2 (615) 259-7600 ¢ Fax (615) 259-7603 = Wu'w,WORKCREFR.( OM



HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
Crossville, Tenncssce
Pagc Two

Our cansideration of the internaf control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first pacagraph of this section and would not nceessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control (hat
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies
that ar¢ also considered 10 be malerial weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described above,
we consider items 09-01 and 09-02 to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Qther Maiters

As part of obaiming reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are Jree ol material
misstatement, we performed ests ol its compliance with cerfain provisions of laws, regulations. contraclts, and
grant apreoments. noncompliance with which could have a direct and material etfect on the determination of
fimancial stiiement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 1o be reporied under Govermment Auditing
Stuindards.

Disposition of Prior Year Audit Findings

In (he prior year report. we disclosed a significantdeficiency (item 08-01) related to reconciliation of accounts
reccivable and accounts payable. We recommended the City personnel not involved in posting (ransactions (o
(huiecounts receivable and accounts payable subsidiary ledyers reconcile the subsidiary ledger balances to the
general ledger accounts at the end of each month and investigate and correct any errors detected prior to the
preparation of financial statements. During the current year the appropriate personnel at the City reconciled
accounls receivable and accounts payable subsidiary ledgers 1o the peneral ledger.

In the prior year report, we disclosed a significant deficiency (ifem 08-02) related to inventory control. We
reccommendcd the City develop a perpelual inventory systen to control and properly account for the cost of
materials and supplics. We also recommend the City implement a work order system in order 1o properly
account for materials and supplies inventory and labor used on Watcr and Sewer Department repair orders and
capital projects. Additionally, we recommended the general ledger balances be reconciled (o the perpetual
inventory system balances on a monthly basis and any discrepancics investigated and corrected prior (o the
preparation of financial stalements. During the current year the City implemented a work order system (0
control for inventory. A complete perpetual inventory system has not been implemented but physical
inventories are taken and general ledger balances arc adjusted 10 the physical counts prior (o the preparation of
annual financial statements,

In the prior year report, we disclosed a significant deficiency (item 08-03) related (o reconciliation ol taps
installed 10 1ap fees collected for the installation of 1aps. We recommended City personnel not involved with
the collection ol 1ap fees reconcile the monics collected for tap fees with the work orders and receipts issued
for tap installations. We also reconmended the City develop a policy that taps are not (o be instalied (il a
copy of the receipt is provided to the Water and Sewer Department personnel instaliing the taps. During the
current year, City personnel not involved in the collection of tap fees reconcited 1aps installed with (ap tees
collected and implemented a policy (hat taps are not to be installed until a copy of the 1ap receipt is provided to
persomnel installing the taps.
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In the prior year report, we discloscd a material weakness (item 08-04) related to the City not maintaining its
accounling records on the proper basis in order o prepare its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles (GAAP). We recommended the City maintain the accounting records of the
Waler and Sewer Department on (he full accrual basis of accounting and the governmental funds on the
modified-accrual basis in order to properly prepare financial statements in accordance with eencrally acceplied
accounting principles as required by state law, The same material weakness is noted during the current year
anditand is referied to in the sehedule of findings and questioried costs as item 09-01.

In the prior ycar report, we disclosed a material weakness (item 08-035) related (o the Oity recording
inlrastructure assets betore (he assets were constructed angd before the asscts were considered City property. We
rccommended City management develop a process o insure the City does not record infrastructure assels prior
to assets being constructed and prior (o asscts becoming Cily property. In addition, we recommended

management develop a procuess 1o insure expenditures and retated liabilitics to the Tennessee Department of

Transporiation only be recorded when the expenditires and related liabilities are actually incarred. During the
current year the City did notrecord infrastructure assets unl they were constiucted and were also considered
City property. Additionally, the City only recorded expenditures and related liabilitics 1o the Tennesscee
Department ol Fransportation when they were actually incurred.

We also noted eertain matters that we reported (o management of the Cily, in a separate letter dated November
2RL2009,

The City's responses (o 1hie findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule off

findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s respanses and, accordingly, we express no vpinion
on then.

This report is intended solely Tor the information and use of management, City Counci), others within the City,
the Comptroller of the Treasury, Statc of Tennessee, and federal awarding apencies and pass-throagh entities
and is not intended (o be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified partics.

ok % brsn, e

November 23,2000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
City of Crossville, Teonessce

Compliance

We lave audited the compliance of City of Crossville, Tennessee (City), with the types of compliance
requirements described inthe U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplenrent (hat are apphieable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended Jupe 30, 2009. The
City's major federal programs are identified in the simimary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s management,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our andbt of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable (o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Cemptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform (he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance wilh the types of
conipliance requirements referred to above that could have a dircet and malerial effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit mncludes examining, on a test basis, cvidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstanees.
We beheve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements

n our opinion, Cily of Crossville, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred 10 above hat are epplicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009.

[niernal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining cffectave internal control over
compliance with the requirsments of laws, regulations, contracts. and grants applicable (o federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order (o determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but nat for the purpose of
expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of internal control over comphiance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Crossville, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.
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A control deficiency in an enlity’s internal conirol over compliance exists when the design or operation ot a
confrol docs notallow manapement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
10 prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A significaunt deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
aflects the entity s ability to administer a foderal prograny such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement ot a federal program thiat is more than inconsequential
will nat be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficieney, or combination ol significant deficicncics, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federl
program will nat be prevenied or detected by the entity’s internal control,

Our consideration of infemal control over compliance was [or the limited purpose described in the (irst
paragraph of this section and wonld not necessarily identify atl deficiencies in miemal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identily any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to he material weaknesses, as delined above.

This report is intended solely fur (he information and use of management, City Council, others within the

entity, the Complroller of the Treasury, State of Tennessee, and federal awarding agencics and pass-through
entitics and is not mtended (o be and should not he used by anyone other (han these specilied parties.

M?@%//c

November 23, 2009



CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

(NS

9.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financiat statements of City of
Crossville, Tennessee for the ycar ended June 30, 2009.

Two significant deficiencies (that are also considered material weaknesses) during the audit of the
financial statements of City of Crossville, Tennessee for the vear ended June 30, 2009 are reported in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Conitrol Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters and are presented below in the Findings — Fimancial Statement Audit.

No instances ol moncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Crossville, Tennessee
for the year ended June 30, 2009 were disclosed during the audit.

No sigmficant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal contiol over major federal award
programs ol City of Crossville, Tennessee for the year ended June 30, 2009 were disclosed during the
audit.

The auditor’s repert on comphiance for the major federal award programs for City of Crossville,
Tennessee expresses an unqualified opivion on all major federal programs.

There are no audit findings that are required 0 be reporivd in accordance with Section S10(a) of
OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major programs for City of Crossville, Tennessee jncluded: U.S. Department
of Transportation Highway Planning and Construction Program (Federal-Aid Highway program),
CEDA 20.205,

The dollar threshold for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs was S300,000.

City of Crossville, Tennessee was detenmined not to be a low risk audstec.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Material Weaknesses

09-01

Basis of Accounting

Condinon: Certain general ledger accounts of the yovernmental funds and the Weater and Sewer
fund are not maintained on the proper basis of accounting in order to prepare financial statements
in accordance with geacrally accepled accounting principles.

Criteriaz State Iaw requires the City o maintain its records in order (o prepare it¢ financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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09-02

CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSEFE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2009

The accrual basis of accounting is required tor the Waler and Sewer tund i order (o present
financial statcments in accordance with GAAP, and the moditied-accrual basis of accounting is
required for all governmental funds in order (o present financial statements in accordance with
GAAPD.

Cause: C(iencral ledger account balances of the governmental funds for hiquor tax and special
assessments and the gencral ledger account balance of the Water and Sewer fund for gran
receivables are not maintained on the proper basis of accounting,

Fiffect: The failure o properly maintain these general ledger accounts on the accrual and modilied-
accrual basis during the yeur cavsed audit adjustments (o be necessary i order (o present (he
inancial statements in accordunce with GAAP,

Recommendation: We recommend the City maintain all general ledger accounts of the Water and
Sewer Departmient on the accrual basis of accounting and all general ledeer accounts of the
eovernmental funds on the modificd-accrual basis in order (o properly prepare financial stateiments
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as required by state law.

Response: The City agrees with the finding and (he recammendation will be implemented.
Infrastruciure Assets

Cuondition: The City (atled to record the land portion ol fnfrastrucuire assets contributed by o
developer and also recorded a des elaper contribution of water iind xewer lines wice.

Criteriaz Internal controls should be in place in order 1o provide reasonable assurance thaf
mfrastructure assets (including tand) contributed by developers are properly recorded in accordance
with gonerally accepled acconnung principles (GAAP)Y.

Cause: Internal controls over developer contributivns are inadequately designed.

kffecsr: The failure 10 properly 1ecord these infrastructure assets during the year cansed audit
adjustments 10 be necessary in order to present the financial statements in accordance with GAAP,

Recommendarion. Procedures should be implemented to insure the fair value of tand contributed by
develapersiseither obiained fron the developer or from the State of Tennesuwee. Comptroller of the
Treasury, Real Lstate Assessment Data website ind properly recorded. Procedures also should be
implemented (o insure contributions of infrastructure asscts are not recorded twice on the City's
records.

Revponge, The City aprees with the inding and the recommendation will be mplemented.
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CITY OF CROSSVILLE, TENNESSER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Prior Year Kindings

Notapplicablc.
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDLT

No findings or questioned costs were noted.
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